ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON ENERGY
February 6, 2013
8:02 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Doug | saacson, Co-Chair
Representative Charisse MIlett, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Neal Foster
Representati ve Pete Hi ggins
Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 39
"An Act relating to the power cost equalization program”

- HEARD & HELD

OVERVI EW (S): RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 39

SHORT TI TLE: POAER COST EQUALI ZATI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

01/ 16/ 13 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/13

01/ 16/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) ENE, FIN

02/ 06/ 13 (H) ENE AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER
REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGVON

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -1- February 6, 2013



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 39, as the sponsor of the
bill.

TI'M CLARK, Staff

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As staff to the bill sponsor, answered
gquestions during discussion of HB 39.

SARA FlI SHER- GOAD

Executive Director

Al aska Energy Authority (AEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview and answered
qguestions on renewabl e energy projects.

SEAN SKALI NG Deputy Director

Al ternative Energy & Energy Efficiency

Al aska Energy Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during t he Power Poi nt
presentati on on Renewabl e Energy Projects.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:02:41 AM

CO CHAIR DOUG | SAACSON called the House Special Conmittee on
Energy neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Representatives Mllett,
Hi ggi ns, Hughes, Josephson, Nageak, and |saacson were present at
the call to order. Representative Foster arrived as the neeting
was i n progress.

HB 39- PONER COST EQUALI ZATI ON

8:03:24 AM

CO-CHAI R | SAACSON announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 39, "An Act relating to the power cost

equal i zati on program"” He pointed out that policies should
define the strategies and should govern the approach to
af fordabl e energy throughout Al aska. He opined that this

approach should naxim ze opportunity, "and not just spends the
doll ars."

8:05:40 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 2- February 6, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGMON, Al aska State Legislature, detailed
that the cost of energy in outlying areas that were dependent on
diesel had resulted in Jlower populations and a changing
denographic in the villages. He explained that his approach to
energy, "to keep an eye on the longer term" included a gas
line, large hydroelectric projects, and alternative, renewable
ener gy sources. He stated that it was also necessary to focus
on the present, as villages "are really just sort of buckling in
under the cost of energy." He opined that, even though the
| egi sl ature had put hundreds of mllions of dollars in energy
programs during recent years, including weatherization, hone
energy rebates, renewable energy grant funds, and conmunity
revenue sharing, there was still nore to do to bridge the gap.
He declared that the natural gas line would be "the great
equal i zer for energy in Alaska." He pointed out that this would
be supplenmented by other forns of energy and renewabl e energy.
He reported that Power Cost Equalization (PCE) started in the
early 1980s with a concern for providing equal access to sources
of power and, in 1984, it becane nore simlar to the current
program He reported that the program peaked in 1999, when it
provi ded 700 kilowatt hours each nmonth to residential users,
with additional provisions for conmmercial wusers. Since that
time, the program had scaled back to 500 kilowatt hours for
residential wusers and comrercial users were renoved, as the

costs were exorbitant. He pointed out that there was now a PCE
endowrent fund of $785 mllion allowing for 500 kilowatt hours
monthly use for each residential user. He reported that the

average residential nonthly usage in many villages was about 330
kil owatt hours. He explained that proposed HB 39 woul d increase
the residential user threshold to 600 kilowatt hours, and would
al l ow commercial use for certain eligible small businesses.

8:12: 20 AM

CO- CHAI R | SAACSON asked for the reason to increase the threshold
when the current average nonthly usage in the bush was only 330
kil owatt hours.

8:12:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON replied that the 330 kilowatt hours of use
was an annual range dispersed over all the rural conmmunities in
Al aska, and had been presented in a March, 2012, report by the
Institute of Social and Econom c Research (I SER)

8:13:11 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 3- February 6, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked if the findings for use were |ower
on average because people could not afford the cost of energy
use.

8:13:47 AM
REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON expressed his agreenent, noting that the

| oner end of costs in the PCE program was 14 cents per kilowatt
hour, which ranged up to $1 per kilowatt hour.

8:14: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked if the proposed bill was an effort
to do what could be done within the fiscal |imtations.

8:15: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON, in response, said that a previous version
of the proposed bill had been "tailored in large part to what
the program was in 1999, although scaling back the comrercial
side of things." He reported that the current version of the
proposed bill had been scaled back, after receiving the
endownent and the demand forecasts. He pointed out that,

al though inmmediate effect of the program would require extra
noney, as the endowrent grew, it would require |ess noney. He
stated that proposed HB 39 would only provide nargi nal benefits
to consuners, and not the full relief of a gas I|ine.

8:16: 20 AM

CO- CHAIR | SAACSON reported that 60 percent of the cost in the
Fai rbanks region was thermal heating, not electricity, and he
asked how this conpared with rural comunities.

8:16: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON replied that when fuel was flown in to a
community, the cost was even higher than 60 percent. He
expl ai ned that the proposed bill would increase the residentia

nmonthly benefit for kilowatt hours from 500 to 600, and it would
reinstate a subsidy of 600 kilowatt hours of use to those smal
busi nesses which used less than 2400 kilowatt hours each nonth.
He declared that it was the small businesses which would benefit
fromthe proposed bill.

8:18: 54 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 4- February 6, 2013



CO- CHAIR | SAACSON noted that, prior to 2000, the Alaska State
Legi sl ature supported both commercial and residential use wth
PCE. He reported that since then, comrercial use had been
excluded and there had been "a huge out-mgration" from the
rural communities because enployers could not keep the doors
open.

8:19:55 AM

CO-CHAIR M LLETT remnded the commttee that, as the price of
oil dropped in 1999, oil revenues declined, and the state budget
was forced to make this change. She stated that, as oi
revenues were again going to be declining, it was necessary to
be cogni zant of the budget. She expressed her pleasure with the
foresight of the legislature to fund an endowrent, which would
continue to produce opportunities for energy subsidies.

8:21: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON stated that rural |egislators had al ways
pointed to the synbiotic econonic, cultural, and socia
rel ati onship between hub communities and outlying villages. He
acknowl edged that this proposed bill would nost likely not
precede the cruise ship bill to the desk of the governor, but he

expressed his hope for nore debate and the opportunity to
highlight the perilous situation existing in many conmunities.
He opined that the challenge for affordable energy was now
st at ew de.

8:22:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked what the average kilowatt usage was
during the w nter nonths.

8:23:55 AM

TIM CLARK, Staff, Representative Bryce Edgnon, Alaska State
Legislature, offering his belief that the average rural usage
was an annual cal cul ation, declared that any small increnent was
a significant help to the residents.

8:.24:.33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked how many Al aska residents were
eligible, were they all in the "rural off the road system" and
were Fairbanks residents eligible. She asked for a sanple

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 5- February 6, 2013



utility bill after the inclusion of PCE She asked for
clarification for the | ogistics of paynent with PCE.

8:25:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON suggested that the Al aska Energy Authority
(AEA) woul d better explain the nmechanics of the program and its
i mpact . He shared that his summer wusage did not reach 500
kilowatt hours, but, during the higher usage in wnter, PCE
suppl emented a benefit for about 33 percent of his bill.

8:26:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked about the cost for the other 67
percent of the bill.

8:26: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON replied that, in Dillingham as there were
nmore efficient generators and a nore nodern utility, the power
rate of about 40 cents per kilowatt hour, wthout the PCE
benefit, was lower than many of the smaller comunities. He
declared that the norm for nmany conmunities was in excess of 50
cents per Kkilowatt hour. In response to Representative Hughes,
he said that his electric bill was nore than $300 per nonth in
the winter.

8:28: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked again if PCE only extended to those
communities off the road system

8:28:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON opined that PCE extended to about 185
communi ti es, but Fairbanks was not awarded PCE.

8:28:40 AM

CO CHAIR | SAACSON clarified that the average costs in Fairbanks,
Anchorage, and Juneau were used to cal culate the PCE formnul a.

8:29:03 AM
CO CHAIR M LLETT suggested a review to the history of PCE as it

was a conplicated formula. She declared that the endowrent fund
had changed the dynamcs of the program from a general fund

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 6- February 6, 2013



expenditure to a percentage of narket value from a fund, which
avoi ded crisis managenent of the program

8:30:45 AM

CO CHAIR | SAACSON agreed to schedule the discussion of PCE and
asked the conmttee to focus on the proposed bill.

8:31: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON directed attention to the attached fisca
note [lIncluded in nenbers’ packet s] . He reported that
addi ti onal accounting personnel would be necessary, and that the
addi tional funding necessary for the program was |isted under
Grants & Benefits. He pointed to the Fund Source and expl ai ned
that both the general fund and the PCE endownent would fund the
expanded program He directed attention to page 2 of the fiscal

not e, paragraph 1 of "Costs Breakdown", and noted that
residential use accounted for 33 percent of the additional $20
mllion annual cost. Moving on to the second paragraph of

"Costs Breakdown," he reported that the renmining 67 percent of
the $20 nmillion annual cost would be allocated to eligible
conmer ci al cust oners.

8:32:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVMON pointed to page 3 of the fiscal note,
whi ch portrayed the endowrent projection through FY 19.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked to clarify that a larger store
woul d not get any subsi dy.

8:35: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON expressed his agreenent.

8:35:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether the endowrent alone could
fund the program in the future, should the kilowatt hour usage
not be increased.

8:35:36 AM

MR, CLARK, in response, said that the endownent fund projections
and the cost estinates for increased residential usage indicated

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -7- February 6, 2013



that the endowmrent fund could cover the additional cost for the
commer ci al subsi dy.

8:36:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON suggested that the Al aska Energy Authority
(AEA) could better clarify whether the endowrent fund could
fully support the PCE program w t hout proposed HB 39.

8:36: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked if the endowrent generated any
f undi ng.

8:37:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON replied that the $785 million endownrent
fund had been started in 2001 wth noney from rmajor
appropriations, which included the constitutional budget reserve
and the railroad energy reserve. He reported that the endowrent
fund benefit amount was annually determined froma rolling three
year average, and that the endownent was required by statute to
earn 7 percent annually.

8:38:13 AM

COCHAIR MLLETT pointed out that the |legislature was not
prohi bited from fundi ng the endowent, and that the average cost
for PCE could increase considerably, dependent on Railbelt
costs.

8:39: 08 AM

CO- CHAIR | SAACSON expressed his agreenment that tines were
changing in Al aska, costs were increasing, and the effectiveness
of the program could be dimnished because of the high cost of
energy in the larger conmunities.

8:40: 28 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked what the cost, or the percentage
of usage, was for Toyo and Mnitor stove use, as they were

thermal heat rel ated.

8:41:12 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 8- February 6, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON replied that he was not aware of this
information, as the household information had not been found
during their research

8:41:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked to «clarify that Representative
Josephson was asking for the fuel consunption by Mnitor or Toyo
st oves. He shared that he owned a four-plex with electric
heating and he offered to split the bill for an estimate.

[ HB 39 was heard and hel d.]

OVERVI EW (S): RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 39]
8:42: 36 AM

CO- CHAI R | SAACSON announced that the next order of Dbusiness
would be an overview of Renewable Energy Projects and would
continue the discussion of proposed HB 39.

8:43:16 AM

SARA FI SHER- GOAD, Executive Director, Alaska Energy Authority
(AEA), informed the conmittee that the endowrent fund was the
nost significant funding source for the PCE program and
remnded the conmmttee that the program funding included a
conmbi nati on of general fund and endowrent fund. She expl ai ned
that the annual distribution from the original $400 million
investnment to the endowrent fund was determned by a formula of

three years for nonthly average nmarket val ue. She directed
attention to page 3 of the Fiscal note for HB 39 [Included in
menbers' packets]. She noted that, with a statutory requirenent

for a 7 percent annual return, the estimted value of the fund
was difficult to project for fiscal note purposes. She referred
to the docunent, "PCE Endownent Fund Real and Projected Bal ances
and Appropriations,”™ [Included in nenbers’ packets] which
detailed assunptions for the fund earnings based on the use of
five percent or seven percent for the program She pointed out
that a 5 percent usage with a 7 percent return for the endowrent
fund would closely match the targeted annual cost of $40 mllion
for the existing program She clarified that this assunption
did not include any changes from proposed HB 39.

8:46: 30 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 9- February 6, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked if the addition of general funds was
for payment to the increase in kilowatt usage or for investnent
into the endownrent fund.

8:46: 58 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD, in response, said that the additional nonies
necessary to fund the proposed program were $20.6 nillion, wth
$14.3 mllion projected for the comercial custoners, and $6.3
mllion for residential custoners.

CO- CHAIR | SAACSON said that this would conclude discussion on
PCE, and discussion on the Renewable Energy Fund would now
begi n.

8:48:35 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD presented a PowerPoint titled "Al aska Energy
Aut hority Overview and Renewabl e Ener gy Fund Update. "
Introducing slide 2, "Reducing the Cost of Energy,"” she
expl ai ned that the Al aska Energy Authority (AEA) mssion was to
reduce the cost of energy by providing technical and community
assi stance, investing in energy infrastructure, and diversifying
Al aska's energy portfolio to neet the State of Alaska goal for
50 percent of electricity use from renewable energy by 2025.
She nmoved on to slide 3, "Electricity CGeneration by Region," a
chart of regional electricity generation in Al aska, and slide 4,
"Energy Costs Vary," which showed the variance of energy and
heati ng costs throughout the state. She pointed out that nost
of the high cost regions were | ower popul ated areas.

8:51:21 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD directed attention to slide 5, "Energy Policy
Devel opnent and Coordination,” and said that the Deputy
Director, Gene Therriault, had taken the lead for coordination
of energy policy and planning. She listed transm ssion planning
and the liquid natural gas (LNG trucking proposal as two
i nportant upcom ng issues. She declared that AEA was working on
regional energy planning, slide 6, utilizing the energy pathway
report, which was a significant inventory of the variety of
resources available to communities. She shared that utilizing
regional energy solutions had developed this into a statew de
pl anni ng process. She acknow edged that a solution for one
regi on was not necessarily a statew de sol ution.

8:53:19 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -10- February 6, 2013



CO-CHAIR M LLETT asked if the commttee could be provided with
the inventory of energy sources and costs for conmunities
t hroughout the state.

8:53: 55 AM

M5. FI SHER- GOAD agreed to provide the report. She reported on
slide 7, "Infrastructure and Large Projects,” and listed the
Bradl ey Lake Hydro-electric project which supplied 10 percent of
the Railbelt electricity, and the Alaska Intertie, which
connected WIIlow and Healy. She declared that AEA was worKking
on the licensing for the Susitna-Wtana hydro-electric project,
and explained that a significant mlestone had been net wth
conpletion of the 44 studies for the Federal Energy Regulatory
Comm ssi on (FERC). She pointed to slide 8, "Rural Energy," and
stated that the rural energy program was mneking progress on
rural power system upgrades that helped inprove the energy
infrastructure in rural Alaska. She said that for the past five
years the State of Alaska has provided AEA with capital dollars
to continue these upgrades.

8:56: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked if there was a nenorandum of
agreenent (MOA) with the Railbelt utilities and AEA

8:56: 36 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD said that there was an intertie operating
agreenent with those utilities that benefited.

8:56: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NACGCEAK asked if there was any financial
conpensati on.

8:56: 59 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD, in response, said that, although there was no
debt or profit nmotive with AEA the Railbelt utilities were
responsible for the operation and maintenance of the intertie
i nfrastructure.

8:57: 20 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -11- February 6, 2013



CO- CHAIR M LLETT pointed to the significant reduction in federa
funding for the Denali Commission, and its effect on the
program  She noted that there was now the question for how that
federal funding would be repl aced.

8:.58:15 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD offered to provide additional information
regarding the Denali Conmm ssion. She noted the partnership
between AEA and the Denali Commssion for other ongoing
pr ogr ans.

8:59: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked if the units pictured in slide 8,
"Rural Energy," were barged up conpletely assenbled to the
comuni ties.

8:59: 53 AM

VB. FI SHER- GOAD expl ai ned that much  of the powerhouse
construction was conpleted at the AEA Anchorage warehouse,
before they were shipped to a rural comunity. She nentioned
t he AEA Power Project |ow interest |oan program

9:00: 27 AM

SEAN SKALI NG, Deputy Director, Alternative Energy & Energy
Efficiency, Al aska Energy Authority, junmped to slide 11, "AEA
Progranms,” and explained that AEA had energy efficiency and
alternative energy |oan prograns. Directing attention to slide
12, "Energy Efficiency and Conservation,”" he stated that this
first step was the nost inportant, prior to building I|arge
systens to provide energy to structures that were not energy
efficient. He noted the two main AEA prograns: Al aska
Conmer ci al Energy Audit Program and the Village Energy
Efficiency program slide 13. He pointed out that the AEA focus
was for comercial, small industrial, and public buildings,
whil e the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) coordi nated
residential buildings. He said the commercial energy audit
program had a lot of potential wth for Jlowering fuel
consunpti on. He pointed to the Al aska Energy Partnership, slide
11, as the center of the outreach efforts to align nessages and
pl an together for a significant inpact at |ow cost. He stated
that the partnership's objective was to attain the state goal of
15 percent energy efficiency inprovenent by 2020.

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -12- February 6, 2013



9:03: 25 AM

CO CHAIR | SAACSON directed attention to slide 11, and asked for
nore explanation to the coordination between State agenci es.

9:03: 31 AM
MR. SKALING reflecting on the coordination between AEA and

AHFC, said this was about energy efficiency. He said that there
was not as much end use energy efficiency work with Departnent

of Natural Resources (DNR). He pointed to the difference
bet ween the equipnment and the system providing it. He offered
an exanple of the rural powerhouse program which provided
suppl y-side energy efficiency. He said that the Renewable
Energy Fund did coordinate with DNR for an extensive review
process of each applicant. He noted that there were 122

communities which received Anerican Recovery and Reinvestnent
Act of 2009 (ARRA) funding. He stated that efficiency prograns
had i medi ate savings, and that the loan prograns were often
pai d through these savings.

9: 05: 53 AM

CO- CHAIR | SAACSON commented that these loans only worked when
there were sufficient funds to pay the original debt. He stated
that "in a real world" many people did not qualify for |oans.

9: 06: 25 AM

MR. SKALI NG expressed his agreenent that this was a hurdle for
commercial and small comrercial buildings. He concl uded that
energy efficiency had the nost effective return within energy
prograns, as the dollar savings went "straight to the end user."
Directing attention to slide 13, he explained that this "whol e-
village retrofit”" to reduce the cost of energy included energy
audits on many public buildings. He noved on to slide 14, "AEA

Prograns,”" and spoke  briefly about the Emerging Energy
Technol ogy Fund, which was relatively new and was now funding 16
conpetitively bid projects. Addressing slide 15, " AEA

Prograns,"” he said that the Energing Energy Technol ogy Fund was
a stepping stone to the Renewabl e Energy Fund, which focused on
generating cost effective energy. He reported that this
i ncluded renewabl e energy, energy efficiency technol ogy, energy
storage, and energy transm ssion.

9:10: 00 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -13- February 6, 2013



MR. SKALING in response to Representative Hughes, replied that
the balloon wind turbine was a project which had been funded in

Al aska, though the exact |ocation was still being researched.
9:10: 21 AM

MR. SKALING reported that the Emerging Energy Technol ogy Fund
was a val uable program which was just beginning. He decl ared
that the Renewable Energy Fund projects were conpetitive and
were |lowering costs. He explained that this was a

recommendation program wth a long vetting process, and that it
was currently in Round 6.

9:12:13 AM

REPRESENTATIVE HIGA NS asked if applicants had to show that
energy could be added to the grid.

9:12:45 AM

MR. SKALI NG expl ai ned that the applicant was required to own the
energy and have a power sales agreenent, if they were an
i ndependent power producer. He reported on slide 16, "Renewable

Energy Fund: Evaluation Process,” and said that this process had
an intensive four stage review, which included Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, AEA, independent econonic evaluations, |SER
and subject matter experts.

9:13: 55 AM

CO-CHAIR | SAACSON asked for clarification on the globa
application with regard to other projects of Stage 4, "Regiona
Spreadi ng. "

9:14:35 AM

MR. SKALI NG expl ai ned that the reconmendati ons were presented to
the legislature in its report. He said that the Stage 2
technical score criteria reflected the economc feasibility, and
Stage 3 reported the scoring utilizing the statutory guidelines,
with the cost of the energy as the nobst heavily weighted
guideline factor. He described that the recomended
applications were geographically spread by fornula, Stage 4,
whi ch reviewed the underrepresented energy regions of the state
in the fund.

9:16: 33 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -14- February 6, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked for <clarification of +the |SER
revi ew.

9:16:59 AM

MR. SKALI NG expl ained that AEA hired economic firns to review
and analyze the projects, and then |ISER reviewed and verified
t hese findings.

9:17:54 AM

COCHAIR M LLETT reported that she would provide to the
commttee the Legislative Audit D vision recomendations on
House Bill 152 and House Bill 306, which offered background
information to the expectations and evolution for the renewabl e
ener gy fund.

9:18: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if the spreadsheet was included
in the January report.

9:19:13 AM

MR. SKALING in response to Representative Josephson, said that
it was included in that report. He concluded by explaining that
the projects were forwarded, after Stage 4, to the Renewable
Energy Fund Advisory Committee and then those recommendations
were provided to the Alaska State Legislature by the tenth day
of the legislative session. He noved on to slide 17, "Renewabl e
Energy Fund Projects,” a map showi ng the diverse regional spread
of the projects in Rounds 1-5. He pointed to slide 18,
"Construction Projects,” which depicted construction projects in
Al aska, either underway or conpl et ed.

9:20: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if the projects were only on
state | and.

9:20: 30 AM
MR.  SKALING replied that the projects could be on state,

federal, or private land, as long as there were rights to the
| and.

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 15- February 6, 2013



9:20: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked about the process on federal
| and.

MR. SKALING stated that there was a | ot of federal scrutiny.
9:20:49 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD clarified slide 18, explaining that there was an
analysis for recomendation and, then the follow up was the
grant process. She pointed out that the construction projects
required site control by the applicant.

9:21:27 AM

MR. SKALI NG pointed out that the process conpared projects side
by si de.

9:22: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES returned attention to slide 18, and asked
if the majority of interest and applications had been for w nd
proj ects.

9:22: 38 AM

MR. SKALING explained that the wnd projects tended to be
gui cker to construct. He pointed out that the hydro projects
were nore expensive and took "a long tine to go step by step to
get to construction.”

9:23:12 AM

CO CHAIR | SAACSON asked if hydro projects were being renoved
fromfederal funding opportunities.

9:23:31 AM

MS. FI SHER-GOAD observed that nore prelimnary work had been
done with federal funds for "shovel ready" wnd projects, as
there was often less of a permtting process than for hydro
proj ect s. She expressed agreenent that it was a |onger process
to permt and develop a hydro project in Alaska, hence the
significant devel opnent of w nd projects. She pointed out that
a wind project could be financially scaled up or down depending

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 16- February 6, 2013



on the nunber of turbines, but a hydro project was subject to
t he spendi ng caps on the AEA projects.

9:25:43 AM

CO CHAIR | SAACSON opined that strategies were created just to
conplete projects, when in fact the goal and the policy should
direct the strategies of the projects. He suggested that a goa
of renewabl e, sustainable, long term and |ow cost energy should
be headed by hydro projects wherever possible, even if wnd
projects were easier and faster to facilitate. He stated that
wind projects always required diesel to ensure there was a
reliabl e source of energy.

9:26:47 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD, in response to Co-Chair |I|saacson, explained
that the Renewable Energy Fund devel opnent of projects was one
strategy which the State of Al aska had funded AEA to address.
It was designed for local projects and was only one strategy.
She agreed that another strategy through AEA was the devel opnent
of hydro projects. She shared that the primary goal of AEA
when established in 1976, was to develop energy projects, but
that the Renewabl e Energy Fund was only one strategy for energy
projects, and it was for devel opnent using |ocal resources.

9:28:52 AM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT said that not every community woul d have access
to hydro power. She declared that the idea of the program was
to find renewable resource projects that would work for each
specific conmunity. She pointed to the recognition that, as not
every area would have the sane type of renewable energy, it was
necessary to find what was best for each community. She stated
that the realistic goal was to replace diesel with a reliable
source of energy.

9:31: 02 AM

CO CHAI R | SAACSON expressed his agreenment that comrunity goals
shoul d have integration with the region, and that the goal for
| ower cost energy projects should be strategic, not reactive.
He reiterated that "the policy should inform our projects, not
our projects our strategies."”

9:31:41 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -17- February 6, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked what the goal was for renewable
energy for the state, and whether hydro projects were considered
as renewabl e projects.

9:32: 08 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD replied that the goal was for 50 percent
renewabl e energy use by 2025. She said that there were aspects
of federal funding for renewable projects which did not include
hydro as a renewabl e resource.

9:33:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked to clarify that the definition had
not been changed, but that there was not the funding.

9:33: 15 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD replied that, although it was dependent on the
program federal prograns did not recognize |large hydro projects
as a renewable energy resource. She noted that there were
subtleties for the requirenents of certain |oan prograns and the
State of Alaska did urge the federal governnent to recognize
hydro as a renewabl e resource.

9:34:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked which form of renewabl e resource had
"the nost value, as far as bang for the buck."

9:34: 31 AM

IVB. FI SHER- GOAD, in response to Representative Hughes,
referenced Kodiak as the poster conmmunity for the Renewable
Energy Fund. She noted that Kodiak had successfully devel oped
wi nd and hydro projects. She said that different regions could
t ake appropriate advantage of the surroundi ng resources.

9:35: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK suggested a discussion for the use of
met hane gas for power.

9: 36: 59 AM

CO-CHAIR | SAACSON recommended that commttee nenbers read
"Pat hways, " an AEA ener gy book.

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 18- February 6, 2013



9:37:22 AM

CO-CHAIR M LLETT declared the inportance for commttee nenbers

to famliarize thenselves with both House Bill 306 and House
Bill 152, as it was necessary to have an historical perspective.
9:37:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked for an explanation to the federal
gover nnment not recogni zing hydro as a renewabl e resource.

9:38: 31 AM

M5. FISHER-GOAD, in response to Representative Josephson, said
that she did not want to speculate for reasons behind federa

deci sions al t hough, she pointed out, there were federal

financial resources available for hydro projects. She offered
her belief that there was a federal preference for solar and
wi nd projects over hydro projects. She said that the FERC
process for Susitna-Watana Hydroelectric project required a
great deal of work.

9:39: 59 AM

CO- CHAIR M LLETT explained that the federal governnent did not
recogni ze hydroelectric as a renewable resource because of the
effect of dams on land and fishing. She alluded that poor
proj ect managenent when planning for environnental inpacts in
the Lower 48 had led to the renoval of hydro as a renewable
resource. She said that the high lake danms in Alaska were
different than the damm ng of rivers in the Lower 48, and that
in Alaska there was an insignificant inmpact to the environment
and the fishing industry. She acknow edged that the federal

government recognized that "Alaska is different” and was
receptive to funding hydro projects and expediting the FERC
process in Al aska. She stated that Alaska was not danmnm ng
rivers.

9:41: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON clarified that Alaska was not yet
dammi ng rivers.

CO-CHAIR M LLETT replied that this was not a fair comment, as
Al aska was "pretty cognizant of not, we're pretty good at

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -19- February 6, 2013



determining that we won't sacrifice one resource for another
resource.”

9:42: 04 AM

MR. SKALING continued with slide 20, "Independent Program
Review," and said that AEA had sought a third party review on
the Rural Energy Fund (REF) during the past year, and those two
reports had been published. He pointed to slide 21, "Economc
Benefits,” which reflected the net present value costs versus
the net present value benefits for the first 62 projects of the

program that nade it to the construction phase. He noted the
high profit. He said that diesel equivalent fuel savings were
at or above projection and would continue to rise, slide 22,
"Avoi ded Fuel." He projected slide 23, "PCE Communities," which
reflected the inpact of the REF on Power Cost Equalization (PCE)
in communities. He stated that the largest inpact of REF

benefit had been for comrercial buildings, which were PCE
ineligible, and that the State of Al aska was also a beneficiary
of the program Speaking to slide 24, "Lowering the Cost of
Energy," he conpared the total cost of Diesel Generation for
twenty years versus a w nd project. The wi nd project cost was
reflected with Renewable Energy Fund (REF) and wthout REF
capital costs. The REF support for wind projects had |owered
and stabilized the costs conpared to diesel. Slide 25,
"Conmunity H ghlight: JBER " listed the landfill-gas-to-energy
project which allowed the nethane to be regulated and not escape
into the environnment. The project now had the nethane coll ected
and directed through gas fired units to produce about 26 percent
of the JBER energy needs. Slide 26, "Delta Junction," depicted
the Delta Junction School bionmass project for heat, which used
the wood chips froma local saw mll, saving $153,000 and 53, 000
gallons in heating for the school during the first wnter. He
pointed out that the system was |ow nai ntenance, and was being
considered for expansion into the elenentary school. Slide 27,
"Atka," portrayed a small hydro project that was generating
energy to provide 100 percent of the community energy needs.

9:48: 39 AM

VR. SKALING directed attention to slide 28, "Round 6
Recomendations,” which listed hydro projects as high value. He
clarified that ideas went through a feasibility study,
reconnai ssance, and final desi gn bef ore novi ng into

constructi on.

9:50: 16 AM

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE - 20- February 6, 2013



M5. FISHER-GOAD pointed to slide 29, "Active Energy Projects,”
which listed the renewable energy prograns and other projects
that were active, alongside the funding which had been provided
beyond the Renewabl e Energy Fund. She concluded with Slide 31
"Projects Under Construction,” a map of Alaska depicting the
projects under construction during the previous sunmer, and
slide 31, "By the Nunbers,” which showed the FY 14 summary and
budget request.

9:52: 02 AM
ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Commttee on Energy neeting was adjourned at 9:52 a.m

HOUSE ENE COWM TTEE -21- February 6, 2013



